
REQUEST FOR BID 

FOR 

BIG ORANGE LIFT STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 

Addendum No. 3 to  

RFB No. 182263.70.0100 

January 27, 2014 

The following information encompasses Addendum No. 3 for the above referenced RFB.  
Bidders shall fully consider and acknowledge this Addendum in the preparation and submittal of 
its formal Bid.  Failure to do so may result in the rejection of the Bid.   

Section 1 – Responses to Bidder Questions 

Section 2 – Technical Clarifications to the Scope of Work (57 pages) attached 

All other conditions and requirements remain unchanged. 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Section 1 - Responses to Bidder Questions 
 
Question #1: 
At what point inside the valve vault does the header go from HDPE to DIP? Or is the entire 
header HDPE? 
 
Response:  
Just inside the valve vault wall, the plans call for two HDPE flange adapters with SS backing 
rings just before the DI header leaves the vault.  The HDPE penetrations through the vault wall 
are done with link seals.  Reference sheet W1.03. 
 
Question #2: 
It was mentioned we are bypassing an 18” line and a 42” line.  The way I understand it is the 
existing bypass pump, which will be replaced, is currently bypassing the 18” line and we have to 
set up a second bypass system for the 42” line.  Please clarify. 
 
Response:  
The City’s existing bypass arrangement will be replaced by the contractor, and the current 
method of bypassing in which the 42” line backflows to the upstream 18” siphon manhole will no 
longer be an option (given that the wetwell will have to be isolated).  So the new bypass 
arrangement will require bypass pumping from both the 18” and 42” lines in either a separate or 
combined pumping scenario.  In either scenario, suction hoses would need to pull flow from 
both and connect to the existing 14” force main. 



 
Question #3: 
Can you provide estimated flow rates from each line, normal and peak?  

Response:  
It is the City’s standard policy to require bypass pump systems to design for full pipe capacity of 
all incoming lines to be bypassed.  It is current understanding that the 10” force main is full of 
debris and not usable.  The contractor will need to connect to the 14” diameter force main.  The 
existing lift station has two 750 gallons per minute (gpm) capacity pumps and two 2,100 gpm 
capacity pumps.  The contractor should assume for the purposes of bidding that normal flow is 
between 750 -1500 gpm and that peak flow is 3,500 gpm, and should design a bypass pump 
system that can meet these hydraulic conditions through the 14” diameter force main.     

Question #4: 
When I at the site I could not find a manhole for access to the 42” line, is it on the other side of 
the fence?   

Response:  
Based on the original design plans, the nearest manhole on the existing 42-inch influent line is 
approximately 120 LF north of the wet well.  Also, the existing maintenance easement on the 
42” line is 30 feet in width.  The station and the manhole to the north are on the same property 
(according to assessor’s office); reference Parcel is D0215-00657.  If contractor needs more 
working space beyond the existing maintenance easement, contractor shall obtain same at his 
expense.  

Question #5: 
There are two bypass connections, one currently being used by the existing bypass.  Is the 
second one the point at which we will connect the second bypass to the force main?  

Response:  
For practical purposes, there is one force main to connect to the 14” diameter force main, as the 
10” is full of debris and is not usable.  The City intends on shutting down their bypass pumping 
operation and the contractor will take over.  There will not be simultaneous City/contractor 
bypass pumping operations. 

Question #6: 
Is the force main pressurized? If so, what is the pressure at the connection point?  

Response:  
The 14-inch diameter force main is not pressurized downstream of the Big Orange Lift Station 
via connections to any other pump systems.  The 10-inch diameter force main, which is not 
usable at Big Orange Lift Station currently due to being full of debris, has several downstream 
pump system connections which pressurize it above and beyond any pressures that would be 
achieved via the Big Orange Lift Station.    



Question #7: 
What is the distance from grade to the water level?  

Response:  
According to the original design drawings, the top of the existing wet well is 291.50 +/- with the 
invert of the 18-inch from the east at 271.69 +/-.  The invert of the 42-inch should be 269.50 +/-.  

Question #8: 
Is there a local contractor preference on this project? 

Response:  
Yes, there is a local contractor preference of 5%. 

Question #9: 
On plan page 2 of 7, Demolition Plan Note #6 states, weight tickets verifying quantity of debris 
will be required for payment for debris removal.  Since this is a lump sum Bid will weight tickets 
be required? 

Response:  
The contractor shall include in his bid the removal and proper disposal of up to 115 tons of 
debris.  Amounts over this base amount shall be paid for based upon certified weigh tickets at 
the point of disposal.  In order to properly account for ALL sand and debris removed from this 
wet well it is expected that the contractor shall provide certified weigh tickets for all materials 
disposed of.  Those amounts exceeding 115 tons will be paid for at the unit price shown on the 
bid schedule.  No separate payment for sand and debris removal below 115 tons will be made.  
Payment up to that amount should be included in the contractor’s price for Wet Well 
Restoration.     
 
Question #10: 
If weight tickets are required will you allow a gallons converted to tons measurement for 
payment of debris removal? 

Response:  
Reference Question#9 above. 
 
Question #11: 
Reference Plan Sheet No. E1.01, Note No. 2: This note requires that circuits leaving the existing 
pump station shall comply with applicable sections of the NEC pertaining to hazardous 
locations.  The current installation has junction boxes with power and control cords in open air 
and running through a plastic sleeve into the wet well.  This installation allows sewer gases to 
escape into the atmosphere and does not provide an adequate cover (conduit) for the wet well 
cables . Should a conduit and a seal be added between the wet well and the junction box when 
the well pumps are reconnected after testing?  
 
Response:  
Reference Question #12 below. 
 



Question #12: 
Reference Plan Sheet E1.01, Wiring Handhole Detail: Please provide a specification for the 
underground handhole.  
 
Response:  
The following clarification and/or amendments to the plans and specifications relative to the re-
routing of the underground electric power and control circuits shall be made.  All conduit and 
fittings utilized, both above ground and below ground, shall be PVC coated rigid steel conduit.  
The contractor shall intercept each existing power and control conduit as close to the existing 
electrical building as practical and reroute same as indicated on Sheet E1.01.  The contractor 
shall include in his bid the replacement of each of the four wet well mounted electrical junction 
boxes with NEMA 4X boxes of equivalent size as the existing.  These boxes shall be fabricated 
of 304 SS and shall be attached to the existing wet well with appropriately sized stainless steel 
unistrut assemblies.  The contractor shall also include in his bid the installation of a short run of 
PVC coated steel elbow and nipple large enough to accommodate the installation of the existing 
submersible pump control/power cable.  Also, when this submersible pump control/power cable 
passes through the existing PVC sleeved opening through the top slab of the wet well the 
contractor shall seal this opening with appropriate non-hardening duct seal.  Also to be included 
in the contractor’s bid is the provision and installation of new control and power wiring from the 
existing termination points in the electrical building to the new wet well mounted junction boxes.  
Size, type and number of wires shall be as existing.  No re-use of wiring as noted on Sheet 
E1.01, Note 4, shall be allowed. 
 
Question #13: 
Reference Plan Sheet E1.01, Note No. 4: The existing wiring is to be removed from the existing 
conduit and reinstalled when the new conduits and handholes are complete.  Once the conduit 
is rerouted the existing wiring will not be long enough to reach the existing terminals.  Should all 
new wiring be furnished between the existing motor control building and the existing pump 
station?  
 
Response:  
Reference Question #12 above. 
 
Question #14: 
Will the Wet Well and Valve Vault piping need to be coated? If so, what type of coating? 
 
Response:  
Reference Section 2 attachment Question 3 page 1 of 57. 
 
Question #15: 
What are the anticipated flow rates for the incoming 18" and 42" lines?  
 
Response:  
Reference Question#3 above. 
 



Question #16: 
Can the contractor use the existing power to run the bypass pumping system? 
 
Response:  
The contractor may NOT utilize the City’s existing power feed to this existing pump station 
without first coordinating with MLGW for the provision of a separate electric meter.  All utility 
costs associated with the contractor’s bypass pumping system will be paid by the contractor.   
 
Question #17: 
Bid item 1300 and Bid Item 1600 both refer to the Payment Bond.  Please clarify the intent of 
these two items. 
 
Response:  
Please refer to Article 00160.4 Bid Guarantee Requirements, Item c.   
(c) If bid is accepted, bidder will execute required 100% Performance/Payment Bond and will 
obtain required insurance coverage within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of Subcontract. 
 
Question #18: 
The Electrical Specifications require that underground conduits be schedule 40 PVC.  Drawing 
E1.01 notes Rigid Steel.  Please clarify. 
 
Response:  
Reference Section 2 attachment Question 3 page 1 of 57. 
 
Question #19: 
Where is the point of rework of the existing conduits? From MCC Building LB's to Wet Well LB's? 
 
Response:  
Reference Section 2 attachment Question 3 page 1 of 57. 
 
Question #20: 
Are we to replace all (4) of the motor termination boxes?  If so, the specifications only address 
NEMA 3R. 
 
Response:  
Reference Section 2 attachment Question 3 page 1 of 57. 
 
Question #21: 
The Electrical Specifications require that exposed conduits be GRC.  If we are to replace 
existing conduits at the wet well, would this specification need to change to PVC Coated GRC? 
 
Response:  
Reference Section 2 attachment Question 3 page 1 of 57. 
 
Question #22: 
The specifications require galvanized steel supports.  Do the specifications need to address the 
corrosive effects of the site? 
 
Response:  
Reference Question #12 above. 



Section 2 - Technical Clarifications to the Scope of Work (57 pages)  
 

 



The following are additions and/or clarifications relative to the technical specification 
and construction details for the Big Orange Lift Station Rehabilitation project. 
 

1. Referring to Sheet W1.03, Valve Vault Details, the contractor should note that 
the discharge piping transitions from DIP to HDPE just prior to exiting the south 
wall  of  the  valve  vault.    As  shown  on  Detail  2,  this  transition  occurs  just 
downstream of the 14‐inch knife gate valve and downstream of the 10‐inch 
pressure isolation ring.   

2. Relative  to  the  bypass  pumping  requirements,  the  following 
clarifications/information  is offered for the contractor’s consideration  in the 
design of his bypass pumping system.  Currently, the City is utilizing an 8‐inch 
Thompson pump that is capable of delivering up to 3,200 gallons per minute 
(GPM) although lower flows are more typical during dry weather conditions.  A 
copy of the pump curve is attached for information.  Additionally, the City is 
utilizing the existing wet well and a portion of the incoming 42‐inch gravity line 
for storage during the on‐going bypass pumping operations with this pump.  To 
this point, this existing bypass pump system has handled the incoming flows to 
their knowledge.  Also, there are several smaller lift stations down stream of this 
existing pump station that are connected directly to the existing 10‐inch force 
main.   There are no other  lift stations connected to the 14‐inch  force main 
downstream  of  the  pump  station.    The  bypass  pumping  system  that  the 
contractor shall  install will be expected to handle all  incoming flows and be 
positioned such that flow will be intercepted from both the 42‐inch gravity line 
from the north and the 18‐inch gravity line from the east without utilizing the 
existing wet well.  Therefore it would seem likely that the contractor will utilize 
at least two separate bypass pumping systems; one for the 42‐inch line and the 
other for the 18‐inch line.  The contractor shall also design his bypass pumping 
system so that operationally the level of sewage in the 42‐inch gravity line does 
not vary significantly  from  the current  levels seen due  to  the on‐going City 
bypass pumping operations.   Both of  these  systems will have  to utilize  the 
existing 14‐inch force main.  The contractor may NOT utilize the existing 10‐inch 
force main for any bypass pumping operations.   Additionally, the contractor 
may NOT utilize the City’s existing power feed to this existing pump station 
without first coordinating with MLGW for the provision of a separate electric 
meter.  All utility costs associated with the contractor’s bypass pumping system 
will be paid by the contractor.  And finally, the bypass pumping system should 
be design such that a velocity in the existing 14‐inch force main does not exceed 
8 feet per second. 

3. The following clarification and/or amendments to the plans and specifications 
relative to the re‐routing of the underground electric power and control circuits 
shall be made.  All conduit and fittings utilized, both above ground and below 
ground, shall be PVC coated rigid steel conduit.  The contractor shall intercept 
each  existing  power  and  control  conduit  as  close  to  the  existing  electrical 
building  as  practical  and  reroute  same  as  indicated  on  Sheet  E1.01.    The 
contractor shall include in his bid the replacement of each of the four wet well 
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mounted electrical junction boxes with NEMA 4X boxes of equivalent size as the 
existing.  These boxes shall be fabricated of 304 SS and shall be attached to the 
existing wet well with appropriately sized stainless steel unistrut assemblies.  
The contractor shall also include in his bid the installation of a short run of PVC 
coated steel elbow and nipple large enough to accommodate the installation of 
the  existing  submersible  pump  control/power  cable.    Also,  when  this 
submersible pump control/power cable passes through the existing PVC sleeved 
opening  through  the  top  slab of  the wet well  the contractor  shall  seal  this 
opening with appropriate non‐hardening duct seal.  Also to be included in the 
contractor’s bid  is  the provision and  installation of new  control and power 
wiring from the existing termination points in the electrical building to the new 
wet well mounted junction boxes.  Size, type and number of wires shall be as 
existing.  No re‐use of wiring as noted on Sheet E1.01, Note 4, shall be allowed.  

4. The contractor shall include in his bid the removal and proper disposal of up to 
115 TONS of sand and debris.  Amounts over this base amount shall be paid for 
based upon certified weigh tickets at the point of disposal.  In order to properly 
account for ALL sand and debris removed from this wet well it is expected that 
the contractor shall provide certified weigh tickets for all materials disposed of. 
Those amounts exceeding 115 TONS will be paid for at the unit price shown on 
the bid schedule. No separate payment for sand and debris removal below 115 
TONS will be made.   Payment up to that amount should be  included  in the 
contractor’s price for Wet Well Restoration.     
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